
ADDENDUM 3

Request for Proposals
City of Minot, North Dakota

Structure Demolition and Site Restoration Project
Project Number 3755

May 10, 2013

Proposals Due: 11:00 A.M., Thursday, May 16, 2013, Minot City Hall, 515 2nd Avenue
SW, Mmot, ND 58701

This Addendum shall be part of the Contract Documents for the above referenced project.
Acknowledge receipt of this Addendum by inserting its number and date in the space provided
on page 2 of Section 00 41 00 Bid Form. Failure to do so may subject the bidder to
disqualification.

In reference to the above Request for Proposals, please note the following changes:

1. The following is the discussion and questions that were asked during the Pre-bid Meeting
held on 23 Apnl 2013 Each question is provided with a response

During the meeting, it was stated by CDM Smith that a list of addresses of the structures to be
demolished is not currently available and that the final number of houses to be demolished may change
slightly A list of addresses was included in Addendum 2 It was discussed that a “not for profit”
organization will be allowed to salvage non-structural material out of the houses before demolition
They will be given a short window of time to complete salvage It will not hinder demolition activities

Questions/Answers

Qi: What type soil for backfill of basement and can on site soil be used? Are there compaction
requirements?

Al Soil from private property including the home being demolished may not be used to fill in the
basement, it must be hauled in. Borrow material for backfill shall comply with the most recent
version of the City of Minot, ND Standard Specifications and Details, Section 1800 Part 2.01.A
“Embankment and Fill”. Contractor shall install fill material in lifts and provide appropriate
compaction of soil in order to prevent future formation of sinkholes.

Q2: Where do water and sewer utilities need to be disconnected?

AZ: Disconnection of water and sewer lines are to be made at or near the curb stop per the
specifications for bid items 0001 through 00028, unless the City elects to implement the
alternate bid items.



Q3: Are City sidewalks in front of structures included in the flatwork onsite that is to be removed?

A3: No. Sidewalks are not included and are to remain.

Q4: Does debris have to be taken to City of Minot landfill?

A4: No. Debris (depending on which type) must be taken to the appropriate State Certified Landfill.

Q5: What are the expected allowable hours of operation?

AS: Since the work will be done in residential areas, it is expected that work may be performed
Monday through Saturday, from 7:00 AM to 7:00 PM, however the hours of operation of
landfills are as defined by the landfills.

Q6: Will all hydrant be In operating condition for purpose of debris watering for dust control?

A6: Yes, all hydrants should now be in operating condition; however it is the Contractors
responsibility to provide water for dust control and to secure and pay for water for that
purpose.

Q7: Does water usage need to be metered and who is responsible to paying water bill if it is
metered? Who is responsible for liability for potential slippage due to ice from use of water for
dust control during cold weather?

A7: If the Contractor elects to utilize City Water from hydrants, usage does not need to be metered.
A flat fee of $75.00 per house will be assessed to the Contractor by the City for hydrant water
usage for dust control. Contractor is responsible for coordinating with the City on hydrant water
usage. Contractor is liable for safety on site; however the requirement to use water below 32
degrees Fahrenheit for dust control has been removed.

QS: What are terms of coverage for City excavation permit within R/W?

AS: For each property, the contractor must obtain and pay for an excavation permit from the City
with the cost of $20 for a maximum of 50 feet of R/W frontage and $1.50 for each additional 10
feet of R/W frontage (or whatever the current terms may be).

Q9: Will the Asbestos Reports be made available before bid opens?

A9: No

Q1O: Are there properties that have swimming pools to be removed?

AIM: Yes, Swimming pooi removal and backfill was addressed in Addendum No. 2



Qil; Will the gas and electricity already be disconnected? Will the contractor be responsible for
) removing gas line at the main?

All: The City will disconnect the gas line in the yard and will disconnect the electrical service.
However, it is the Contractor’s responsibility to coordinate and verify that all utilities have been
cut off and removed from the structure prior to starting and demolition activities.

Q1Z: Will the addresses be made available before the bid opens?

A12: Yes, Addendum No.2.

Q13: Will the slab removal bid item include flatwork in the square footage?

A13: Yes.

Q14: Are there any historic properties to be demolished?

A14: No

Q15: Is the 1,400 CY that is referred to on the bid form under the item “Removaland Backfill of
Basements” referring to each basement or all basements included in the bid?

415: The quantity for this item is changed by Addendum No. 2 and is an estimate of the total amount
of backfill material for all houses with basements.

Q16: Are all of the houses without basements on a Crawispace?

AiG: No. Some are slab on grade.

2. The following is a question that was submitted after the Pre-bid Meeting and before 10 May
2013,

Q17: Section 004100 of the Structure Demolition & Site Restoration RFP requires the contractor to
provide their North Dakota Waste Haulers Permit. However, this permit is only available to the
contracting company which does the actual hauling; the state will not issue us the waste hauling
permit so we will not be able to provide the requested permit number.

A17: If you intend to use a subcontractor forthe hauling of the debris, insert their name and permit
number. If the subcontractor has not yet been identified, put “subcontractor not yet identified”
in that box. Note: The subcontractor name and permit number must be provided prior to any
such waste hauling.

Q18: We understand the RFP requires the contractor to provide a 5% bid bond. Since there is no place
on the bid schedule to total categories A through E, we are not sure how to get the total
contract amount. Should we base our 5% bid bond off the sum of categories A, B, C, and D?

AlS: Yes. Category E is for alternative bid items which may or may not be implemented into the
project.



Q19: Section 007300—I am not a Section 3 business. I intend to hire locals when possible and will
include that info in my bid. Ok to proceed this way?

A19: The requirements of Section 00 73 00 must be complied with by the Contractor. Also, see
attached responses to frequently asked questions from MUD regarding this issue.

Q20: Per the pre-bid meeting we will not need to address lead as hazardous. No testing has been
performed correct?

A20: No lead testing is available. There is a North Dakota requirement for notification for demolition
of a pre-1978 structure due to the potential for lead paint materials. Contractor is responsible
for this notification and all such requirements for compliance with local, state and federal
environmental regulations.

Q21: Section 3700 3.07 Erosion control blanket. Is this required over all hydro-seeding?

A21: Erosion control devices and practices shall be provided by the Contractor as appropriate and as
specified in the Contractor’s Erosion Control Plan submittal per contract specifications.

Q22: Bid docs talk about ND approved seeding dates. I would like to reserve all seeding, watering, and
maintenance until demo is complete — at September time frame — ok?

A22: No, seeding, watering and maintenance are required to commence upon completion of the
demolition at each site,

Q23: I see where many items (HVAC, HI-lW, e-waste, etc) were moved from the bid items and placed
as ‘incidental” and at no additional cost to the owner. This new list of incidentals includes
“Removal and dIsposal or recycling of all concrete, slabs, basements, foundations, pavement
and flatwork”. Is this item listed under incidental by mistake?

A23: No. Removal and disposal or recycling of all concrete, slabs, basements, foundations, pavement
and flatwork is incidental and should be included in the demolition price for the appropriate bid
item.

Q24: Has the completion date changed with the addition of the homes in Addendum 2, or is it still
September 15, 2013?

A24: No, the completion date remains September 15, 2013.



GUIDANCE ON MBE/WBE OUTREACH

I. Minimum Acceptable Outreach Standards

Section 281 of the National Affordable Housing Act requires each participating jurisdiction to prescribe
procedures acceptable to the Secretary to establish and oversee a minority outreach program. The program
shall include minority and woman-owned businesses in all contracting activ!ties entered into by the participating
judsdlction to facilitate the provision of affordable housing authorized underthis Act or any other federal housing
law applicable to such Jurisdiction. Therefore, minimum HUD standards require that each participating
jurisdiction’s outreach effort to minority and women-owned businesses be:

O A good faith, comprehensive and continuing endeavor

ci Supported by a statement of public policy and commitment published in the pnnt media of widest local
circulation;

O Supported by an office and/or a key, ranking staff person with oversight responsibilities and access to the
chief elected official, and

O Designed to utilize all available and appropriate public and private sector local resources.

IL Guidelines for a Minority/Women Business Outreach Program

Under the minimum MUD standards cited above, the following guidelines are provided for use by
participating jurisdictions in implementing outreach programs to ensure the inclusion, to the maximum extent
possible, of entitles owned by minorities and women Each participating jurisdiction should

O Develop a systematic method for identifying and maintaining an inventory of certified minority and women’s
business enterpnses (MBEs and WBEs), their capabilities, services, supplies and/or products,

O Utilize the local media, electronic and print, to market and promote contract and business opportunities for
MBEs and WBEs,

O Develop informational and documentary materials (fact sheets, program guides, procurement forecasts,
etc.) on contract’subcontract opportunities for MBE5 and WBEs;

O Develop procurement procedures that facilitate opportunities for MBEs and WBEs to participate as vendors
and supplies of goods and services;

O Sponsor business oppórtunuty-related meetings, conferenceseseminars, etc., with minority and women
business organizations; and

ci Maintain centralized records with statistical data on the utilization and participation of MBEs and WBEs as
contractors/subcontractors in all RiD-assisted program contracting activities.

Each participating jurisdiction, utilizing the standards and guidelines listed above, shall prescribe
procedures and actions it will undertake in implementing a minonty and women’s business enterpnse outreach
program. The above items represent basic outreach-related activities and are not all-inclusive actions a
participating jurisdiction may undertake,
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GUIDANCE ON SECTION 3 N
(Refer to 24 CFR Part 135 for complete information)

WHAT IS SECTION 3?

Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968 (Section 3), as amended by the Section 915 of
the Housing and Community Development Act of 1992, requires that economic opportunities generated by HUD
financial assistance for housing and community development programs be targeted toward low- and very low-
income persons. In effect, this means:

ID Whenever HUD assistance generates opportunities for employment or contracting, Public and Indian
Housing Authorities, state and local grantees, and other recipients of HUD housing assistance funds must,
to the greatest extent feasible, provide these opportunities to low- and very low-income persons and tO
bu&nesses owned by or employing tow- and very low-income persons.

O The SectIon 3 requirements apply to job training, employment, contracting and subcontracting and other
• economic opportunities arising from assistance provided for construction, reconstruction, conversion, or

rehabilitation (including lead-based paint hazard reduction and abatement) of housing, other buildings, or
improvements assisted with housing or community development assistance, including HOME.

O Section 3 applies to:

projects for which HUD’s share of project costs exceeds $200,000; and

~- contracts and subcontracts awarded on projects for which HUD’s share or project costs exceeds
$200,000, and the contract or subcontract exceeds $100,000.

0 Recipients whose projects do not fall under Section 3 are nonetheless encouraged to comply with the
Section 3 preference requirements.

ID Recipients and their contractors and subcontractors must show oreferences for giving training and
employment opportunities to low-income persons, to the greatest extent feasible. They should show
priority considerations for hiring law-income persons as follows:

(1) Low-income persons residing In the service area or neighborhood In which the project is located.

(2) Participants in HUD Youthbuild programs.

(3) If project is assisted under the McKlnney Act, homeless persons in the project area of the project.

(4) Other Section 3 residents.

Again, the persons hired should be qualified to perform the work required.

O RecipIents and their contractors and subcontractors must direct their efforts to award Section 3 business
concerns, to the greatest extent feasible, to Section 3 business concerns in the following preference order

(1) Section 3 busInesses that operate In the project area.
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(2) Entitles that carry out Youthbuild programs.

(3) Other Section 3 business concerns.

The business must be able to demonstrate that it can successfully perform under the terms and conditions
of the proposed contract. In addition) these requirements do not restrict competition to only businesses
meeting one of the priorities, nor do they authorize set-asides.

COMPLIANCE AND RECORDKEEPING

0 Numerical goals for meeting the greatest extent feasible requirement

For training and employment opportunities resulting from Section 3-covered housing assistance, a
commitment to employ 10% of the aggregate number of new hires each year overthe duration of the
Section 3 project.

For training and employment opportunities resulUng from Section 3-covered community development
assistance, a commitment to employ 30% of the aggregate number of new hires for a one-year period.

* For contracts awarded in connection with Section 3-covered projects, a commitment to award at least
10% of the total dollar amount of contracts for building trades work ~4 at least 30% of the total dollar
amount of all other Section 3-covered contracts.

0 All recipients of assistance must:

‘— Amend their employment and procurement policies to comply with Section 3.

* Include the Section 3 clause is covered contracts and subcontracts.

>- Document their best efforts to comply with Section 3 and their success at hiring low-income persons.

* Monitor their own compliance and the compliance of their contractors and subcontractors.

~ Provide annual reports to the Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity as requested.

O Recipients must maintain the following records;

The good faith efforts made to make low-income persons aware of the positions, and to encourage and
facilitate their application.

>- The number and dollar value of all contracts awarded to businesses and, in particular, SectionS
businesses during the fiscal year.

A description of the best efforts made to award contracts to Section 3 businesses.

* The mechanisms by which they ensured that contractors and subcontractors complied with the Section
3 preferences for training, employment, and contract awarding.

0 The Assistant Secretary for Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity will conduct periodic compliance reviews.
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Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)

Section 3 of the Housing & Urban Development Act of 1968

GENERAL QUESTIONS I
APPLICABILITY 4
CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER LAWS 8
RECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 9
SECTION 3 PREFERENCE 11
ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES/NUMERICAL GOALS 14
RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING 16
SECTION 3 COMPLAINTS 18

GENERAL QUESTIONS

1. What is Section 3?

Section 3 is a provision of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968. The
purpose of Section 3 to ensure that employment and other economic opportunities
generated by certain HUD financial assistance.shall, to the greatest extent feasible, and
consistent with existing Federal,
State and local laws and regulations, be directed to low- and very low income persons,
particularly those who are recipients of government assistance for housing, and to
business concerns which provide economic opportunities to low- and very low-income
persons.

2. What does “To the Greatest Extent Feasible Mean?

By to the “Greatest Extent Feasible”, the Department means the every effort must be
made to comply with the regulatory requirements of Section 3. By this, the
Department means that recipients of Section 3 covered financial assistance should
make every effort within their disposal to meet the regulatory requirements. For
instance, this may mean going a step beyond normal notification procedures for
employment and contracting procedures by developing strategies that will
specifically target Section 3 residents and businesses for these types of economic
opportunities.

3. What does the term ‘Section 3 resident” mean?

A “section 3 resident” is: 1) a public housing resident; or 2) a low- or very low
income person residing in the metropolitan area or non-metropolitan county
where the Section 3 covered assistance is expended.

4. What does the term Section 3 Business Concern mean?
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Section 3 business concerns are businesses that can provide evidence that they
meet one of the.following.criteria:

a) 51 percent or more owned by Sectioh 3 residents; or

b) At least 30 percent of its full time employees include persons that are
currently Section 3 residents, Or were Sebtion 3 lesidents within three years
of the date of first hire*; or

c) Provides e~idence, as required, of a commitment to subcontract in excess of
25 pércént of the dollar awarc~ of all subcontracts to business concerns that
meet one of the first two qualifications above.

*Example: Alysha was an unemployed Section 3 resident that was first hired by
ABC Company oh January 1; 2011. She received a raise of $2,500 in March
2012, thereby boosting her household income above the local low income level.
ABC Company may continue to count Alysha as one of their Section 3
employees until December31, 2013 (i.e. within three. years of the dateof first
hire).

5. HOw does Section 3.diffet from the Minority Business Enterprise/Women Business
Enterprise programs?

Section 3 is both racd and gender neutral. The preferences provided under this
regulation are based on income-level and location. Section 3 regulations were
designed to encobra9e~cipients of HUD funding to dirett new employment,
training1 and cohtracting opportunities to low-income residents, and the businesses
that employ these. persàns, within their càmmunity regardless of race and/or gender

To learn more aboUt the Mihority Business Enterpriseand Women Business
Enterprise programs, please contact 1-IUD’s Office of Small and Disadvantaged
Business Utilization at 202-708-1428, or visit their website, located at:
httg I/portal hud gov/poftal/pa~e/portal/HU D/ørogram offices/sdb

6. How are “low-incOme” and very low-income determined?

Low- and very-low-household income limits aredetermined annually by HUD. These
limits are typically established at 80 percent and 50 percent of the median income
for each locality by household size or the number of people residing in one house
HUD income limitsrnay be obtained from:
http /Iwvvw huduser org/portal/datasets/il html

7. What are “metropolitan areas” and ‘non-metropolitan counties?”
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) Metropolitan area means a metropolitan statistical area (MSA), as established by the
Office of Management and Budget A non-metropolitan county means any county
outside of a metropolitan area.

A current list of MSAs can be found at:
http llwww census gov/population/www/metroareasfmetrodef html

8. What is a “new hire”?

A new hire means a full-time employee for a new permanent, temporary, or seasonal
position that is created as a direct result of the expenditure of Section 3covered
financial assistance.

9. Can laid-off workers that are “re-hired’ as a result of a.HUD4unded project
considered new hires?

Yes. Any employee that was not on the payroll of a recipient, developer, or contactor
on the day that Section 3 covered assistance was provided can be counted towards
the Section 3 minimum numerical goal for employment

10. What is a Section 3 covered project?

) A Section 3 covered projebt involves the construction or rehabilitation of housing
(including reduction of lead-based paint hazards), or other public construction such
as street repair, sewage line repair or installation, updates to building facades, etc.

11 Who is considered a recipient of Section 3 funding~

A recipient is any entity which receives Section 3 covered assistance, directly from
HUD or from another recipient (i.e., a PHA; unit of State or local government;
property owner; developer; étc). It does not include contractors or any intended
beneficiary under the HUD program to which Section 3 applies, such as a
homeowner or a Section 3 resident

12.Which recipient agencies (or sources of HUD financial assistance) are required to
comply with SectiOn .3?

Public Housing Authorities (PHAs) regardless of size or number of units are required
to comply with Section 3. One exception is PHAs that only receive or administer
tenant-based Housing Choice (Section 8) Vouchers and do not utilize any of the
financial assistance described above. Although they are exempt, compliance with
Section 3 is encouraged.

3



Section 3 also applies to recipients of more than $?OO,000 from housing and
community development programs. The following are a list of example~ of such
funds: I

• Community Development Block Grant (CDB~)
• HOME Investment Partnership
a Neighborhood Stabilization Program Grants (NSP 1; 2 & 3)

• Economic Development Initiative (ED1)/Rrownfield Economic Development
Initiative Grants

• Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)
.• Homeless Assistance Grants (ESG)
• University Partnership Grants
• Economic Stimulus Funds (including CDBG-R and CFP Supplemental)
• 202/811 Grants
• Lead Hazard Control Grants

lrNote: The requirements of Section 3 typitallyapply to recipients of HUD funds that
will be used for housing construction, rehabilitation, or other public
construction. Contact the Economic Opportunity Division at
section3@hud gov to determine applicability to a particular project/activity

13. Can a non-profit organization be con&dered a “business concern” for the purposes
of Section 3? .

Yes. A non-profit organization can be a legitimate business concern. Non-profit
organizations must meet the criteria of a Section 3 business concern as defined at
24 CFR Part 135.5 in order to recéjve Section 3 preference.

14. What is a Service Area?

The Service area is the geograØhi.cal area in which the persons benefiting.from the
Section 3 covered project reside. The Service Area shall not extend beyond the unit
of local government in which the Section 3 covered financial assistance is expended.

APPLICABILITY

15. What is Section 3 covered assistance?

Section 3 covered assistance incIudes~

• Public and Indian Housing Operating Subsidy; Capital Funds; or
Modernization assistance; and

• Housing and community development assistance expended for housing
rehabilitation, housing construction, or other public construction.
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16. What are funding thresholds and how do they apply to Secflon 3 covered financial

assistance9

Funding thresholds are minimum dollar amounts that trigger Section 3 requirements.
There are no thresholds for public and Indian housing (PIN) programs. The
requirements of Section 3 apply to all PIH programs regardless of the amount of
assistance received from HUD

The Section 3 requirements apply to recipients of Housing and/or Community
Development Assistance exceeding $200,000 combined from all sources in any one
year. Section 3 covers the expenditure of any portion of those funds for any activity
that involves housing construction, rehabilitation, or other public construction.

For example, a city receives $600,000 for CDBG, $150,000 in HOME Funding, and
$75,000 in NSP funding. This represents a total of $825,000 in housing and
community development assistance. As such, any construction or rehabilitation
activities funded by the city using those funds is covered by Section 3.

17. Do the requirements of Section 3 apply to grantees on a “per project” basis?

No. Any agency that receives covered assistance that exceeds $200,000 is required
to comply with the requirements of Section 3 whenever any projects involving
housing construction, rehabilitation, or other public construction are administered,
regardless of the actual dollar amount of covered assistance that is invested into the
individual project/activity.

18. If a project is funded with non-HUD assistance, do the requirements of Section 3 still
apply?

Section 3 applies to projects that are fully or partially funded with HUD financial
assistance. Projects that are financed with state, local or private matching or
leveraged funds used in conjunction with HUD funds are covered by Section 3.

19. What dollar threshold amounts apply to contractors/subcontractors?

All contracts (or subcontracts) funded with Public and Indian Housing assistance,
regardless of dollar amount or type of contract, is subject to the requirements of
Section 3.

With respect to recipients of Housing and/or Community Development funding, all
contractors or subcontractors that receive covered contracts in excess of $100,000
for housing construction, rehabilitation, or other public construction are required to
comply with the requirements of Section 3.
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20. What responsibilities do contractors/subcontractors have if they receive Section 3
covered contracts?

If the contractor/subcontractor has the need to hire new persons to complete the
Section 3 covered contract or needs to subcontract portions of the work to another
business, they are required to direct their newly created employment and/or
subcontracting opportunities to Section 3 residents and business concerns. The
same numerical goals apply to contractors and subcontractors (i.e., 30 percent of
new hires, 10 percent of construction contracts, and 3 percent of non-construction
contracts). In addition, the contractor/subcontractor must notify the recipient agency
about their efforts to comply with Section 3 and submit any required documentation.

21. Do the Section 3 requirements apply to material only contracts?

No. Section 3 does not apply to material only contracts or those that do not require
any labor. For example, a contract for office or janitorial supplies would not be
covered by Section 3. In this example, Section 3 would be encouraged but not
required. However, a contract to replace windows that includes the removal of
existing windows and the installation of new windows would be covered.

22. Are maintenance projects covered by Section 3?

Yes, but only for PH funded programs administered by Public Housing Authorities.

23. Does the reduction and abatement of lead-based paint hazards constitute housing
rehabilitation?

Yes, reduction and abatement of lead-based paint hazards does constitute housing
rehabilitation and is covered by Section 3.

24.Are demolition projects covered by the requirements of Sections?

Yes. Recipients of Section 3 covered assistance should make efforts to award a
minimum of ten percent of the total dollar amount of all demolition contracts to
Section 3 businesses.

25.Are professional service contracts covered under Section 3?

Yes, the term “Section 3 covered contract” includes professional service contracts
provided that the work to be performed is generated by the expenditure of Section 3
covered Public and Indian housing assistance, or for work arising in connection with
projects involving housing rehabilitation, housing construction, or other public
construction.

26. Does Section 3 apply to new hiring by a CDBG-Fntitlement recipient?
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Yes. If the recipient intends to use its HUD allocation to hire additional staff

person(s) to perform work related to housing construction, rehabilitation, or other
public construction, then the position(s) is coveted by Section 3. However, if the
local municipality uses a civil servant applicant process to hire new employees,
compliance with the requirements of Section 3 may not be feasible.

27. Does Section 3 apply to new hiring by a Public Housing Authority?

Yes. Section 3 applies to all Public and Indian Housing capital, operating or
development funds; therefore, new hiring done by the PHA (regardless of the
position) is covered by Section 3.

28. For community development and other housing assistance, do the thresholds apply
to the total amount of HUD assistance received or the amount of funds invested into
Section 3 covered projects/activities9

The threshold applies to the total amount of HUD assistance received. Example: the
City of Mountain View, receives $210,000 through the State CDBG program. The
funds will be used as follows:

a. Housing rehabilitation- $180,000;
b. micro-enterprise revolving loan fund- $20,000; and
c. Fair housing counseling- $10,000.

City of Mountain View is subject to Section 3 requirements because they received
over $200,000 in housing and community development funds. However, only the
funds expended for Section 3 covered activities must comply with the requirements
of Section 3. Therefore, the expenditure of the $180,000 is covered by Section 3.
The remaining $30,000 that was used for fair housing counseling and a revolving
loan fund is not covered by Section 3

29.Are contracts cumulative for reaching the Section 3 threshold?

No. Contracts for Section 3 covered projects are j~ cumulative. The requirements
of Section 3 apply to each individual contract that meets the thresholds.

For example, if a recipient agency awards 3 housing rehabilitation contracts (at
$36,000; $50,000; and $20,000 for a cumulative total of $106,000) to one contractor
for three different projects within a twelve month period, the contractor is not
required to comply with the requirements of Section 3 because none of his contracts
met the $100,000 threshold. Accordingly, the responsibility for meeting the
requirements of Section 3 would remain with the recipient agency that awarded the
contracts.
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CONSISTENCY WITH OTHER LAWS

30. Does Section 3 apply to other State/local laws?

Yes. Compliance with Section 3 shall be achieved, to the greatest extent feasible,
consistent with local laws and regulations. Accordingly, recipients of Section 3
covered assistance are required to develop strategies for meeting both the
regulatory requirements at 24 CFR Part 135 and any other applicable statutes or
regulations.

31 .What is the relationship between Section 3 and Davis Bacon requirements?

Compliance with Section 3 must be achieved consistent with the requirements of
Davis-Bacon. Certain construction contracts are subject to compliance with the
requirement to pay prevailing wages determined under Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C.
276a—276a—7) and implementing U.S. Department of Labor regulations in 29 CFR
part 5.~ Additionally, certain HUD-assisted rehabilitation and maintenance activities
on public and Indian housing developments are subject to compliance with the
requirement to pay prevailing wage rates, as determined or adopted by HUD, to
laborers and mechanics employed in this work.

32.What is the relationship between Section 3 and Minority Business Enterprises
(MBE5)?

‘Minority business enterprise’ (MBE) means a business enterprise that is owned and
controlled by one or more minority or socially and economically disadvantaged
persons. Such disadvantage may arise from cultural, racial, chronic economic
circumstances or other similar causes.

Section 3 preferences are race and gender neutral. A minority and/or woman owned
business enterprise must provide evidence that it meets at least one criterion of a
Section 3 business outlined above in order to receive preference under Section 3.
However, the Department anticipates that Section 3 will serve to support, and not
impede, contract opportunities for minority business enterprises.

The MBE designation may provide preferences promoted by other statutes and
regulations, such as goals for MBEs, and other socially and economically
disadvantaged businesses. Additional information about the MBE program can be
obtained by calling the MUD Office of Small and Disadvantaged Business Utilization
at 202-708-1428.

8



RECIPIENT RESPONSIBILITIES

33 What are the responsibilities of recipient agencies under Section 39

Recipients are.required to ensure their own compliance ~ the compliance of their.
contractors/subcontractors with the Section 3 regulations, as outlined at24 CFR §
135.32. These responsibilities includébutrriày not be necessarily limited to the
following,

Designing and implementing procedures to comply with the requirements of
Soction 3 in order to comply with Section 3: Recipient agencies must take an
active role in ensuring Section 3 compliance. The.first step is designing or
planning and implementing procedures to ensure that all parties, including
residents, businesses, contractors, and subcontractors, comply with Section
3. . ,,. . ., .,,.

• Facilitating the training and employment of Section 3 residents: The recipient
agency must act as a facilitator, connecting Section 3 residents to training
and employment opportunities.

• Facilitating the award of contractsto Section 3 business concerns: The
recipient agency must also work to link developers and contractors with
capable Section 3 business concerns Additionally, recipient agencies, when
necessary, may direct Section 3 business concerns to organizations that
provide capacity building training.

• Ensuring Contractor and Subcontractor Awareness of Section 3 Goals and
Responsibilities: The recipient agency is responsible forlensuring that
contractors and subcontractors are aware of, and in compliance with, Section
3 requirements.

• Ensuring Compliance and Meeting Numerical Goals: Recipient agencies shall
ensure compliance with Section 3 by assessing the hiring and subcontracting
needs of contractors, regularly monitoring contractor compliance, assisting
and actively cooperating with the Secretary of HUD in obtaining the
compliance of contractors; Penalizing non-compliance;. Providing incentives
for good performance; and Refraining from entering into contracts with any
contractor that previously failed to comply with the requirements of Section 3.

• Reporting Requirements Recipient agencies must document all actions taken
to comply with the requirements of Section 3 Recipient agencies must submit
a Section 3 Annual Summary Report (Form HUD-60002) for all covered
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funding to the Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity. Section3.
reports shall be submitted electronically online at: www.hud.govIsection3.

34. What are good strategies for targeting Section 3 residents and businesses?•

In order to target Section 3 residents and businesses, recipients must establish and
maintaihan effective Section 3 program. HUD has found that hiring a Section 3
coordinator or assigning one individual the responsibility of coordinating all Section 3
related activities to be instrumental for reaching the employment and contracting
goals.
It is recommended that recipient agencies establish procedures to certify Section 3
residents and Section 3 business concerns and incorporate some form of preference
for employment and contracting opportunities. Thereafter, they should maintain a
list of eligible residents and businesses by skill, capacity or interest and contact them
on a periodic basis when employment and contracting opportunities are available.
Refer to the Section 3 Regulations at 24 CFR Part 135.32 for a listing of
responàibilities and the Appendix to the Section 3 regulations for additional

• examples of effective strategies.

35.Are funds provided to recipients so that they can comply with the requirements of
Section 3?

No. Since Section 3 reqUirements are only triggered when the normalexpenditure
of covered funds results in employment, training, or contracting opportunities, there
is no need for the Department to provide funds to meet the recipient responsibilities
set forth in the regulation.

36. Does Section 3 require recipient agencies to create new (or unnecessary) training,
employment, and contracting opportunities?

Recipient agencies are not required to create jobs or oontracts fot Section 3
residents and business concerns simply for the sake of creating them. Section 3
requires that when employment or contracting opportunities are generated because
a project or activity undertaken by a recipient of covered HUD financial assistance
necessitates the employment of additional personnel through individual hiring or the
awarding of contracts, the recipient must give prefEence in hiring to low- and very
low- income persons and/or businesses that are owned by these persons or that
substantially em~lày them.

37,Are Section 3 residents or business concerns guaranteed employment or contracting
opportunities under Section ~‘Z

Section 3 is not an entitlement program, there are no guarantees. Residents and
businesses must be able to demonstrate that they have the ability or oapacity to
perform the spècifib job or successfully complete the contract that they arèseeking.
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Section 3 requirements provide preference to Section 3 residents and business
concerns, but not a guarantee.

38.Are recipients, developers, and contractors required to provide long- term
employment opportunities, and not simply seasonal or temporary employment?

Recipients, developers, and contractors are required, to the extent feasible, to direct
~jj employment opportunities to low- and very low-income persons- including
seasonal and temporary employment opportunities. Employment goals are based
on ‘new hires,’ which are defined as full-time employees for permanent, temporary or
seasonal employment opportunities.

Recipients, developers, and contractors are encouraged to provide long-term
employment.

39. When might a recipient agency be exempt from the requirements of Section 3?

Typically, the Department does not grant any exemptions or waivers related to
Section 3.

40.Are recipients required to request developers or contractors to make payments into
Section 3 training or implementation funds?

No. Recipients are not required to request noncompliant contractors make
payments into a fund.

Providing employment, training, and subcontracting opportunities to Section 3
residents and businesses must be the primary goal of developers/contractors.
However, such a fund can be used in very specific instances as a penalty for
noncompliance.

SECTION 3 PREFERENCE

41. How can a prospective Section 3 resident or business certify that they meet the
eligibility requirements?

The individual or business must contact the agency or developer that they are
seeking employment or contracting opportunities from (i.e., the PHA, city, or local
government). They should identify themselves as a Section 3 resident or business
and provide whatever documentation that the recipient agency requires under their
certification procedures.

42. Who is responsible for certifying that residents and businesses meet the regulatory
definitions under Section 3?
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The regulation allows recipient agencies to use their discretion for developing
specific procedures to meet the requirements of Section 3. This includes )
establishing their own standards/processes for verifying eligibility of Section 3
residents and businesses(or not). Each recipient is also free.to acceptor reject the
standards/process used by other recipients or pay for the services of a thjrd party.
vendor to determine eligibility. While HUD dOes not endorse the services of private,
third party vendors, recipient agencies may employ such services at their discretions

43.What are examples of acceptable evidence to determine eligibility as a Section 3
resident?

HUD does not prescribe that any specific forms of evidence to establ!sh Section 3
eligibility. Sample certification documentscanbe found on the Section 3 website.
Acceptable documentation includes, but is not limited to the following:

• Proof of residency in a public housing development;
• Evidence of participation in a HUD Youth build program operated in the

metropolitan area (or non-metropolitan county) where the Section 3 covered
assistance is spent;

• Evidence thAt the individual rèéides in the Section 3 area and is ~a low or very
low-inOome person, as determined bylocal HUD income limits;

44.What are exarnp!es of acceptable evidence for determining eligibility as a Section 3
business?

HUD does not prescribe that any specific forms of evidence be required to establish
Section 3 eligibility. Sample certification documents can be found on the Section 3
website. The business seeking the preference must be able to demonstrate that
they meet one of the following criteria:

• 51 percent or more owned by Section 3 residents; or
• Has permanent, full time employees at least 30 perbent of whom are currently

SectionS residents, or within three years of the date of first employment with the
business concern were Section 3 residents; or

• Has a commitment to sub-contract in excess of 25 percent of the total dollar
award of all sub-contracts to be awarded to such businesses described above.

45.Are all publià and Indian housing residents considered Section 3 residents
regardless of their income? *

Yes. Public and Indian housing residents need only show proof of residency in public
housing within .the metropolitan area (or non-metropolitan county). Other residents of
the Section 3 area may need to: show proof of residency in the metropolitan area (or
non-metropolitan county) and meet the HUD income requirements.
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46. Can recipient agencies allow residents or businesses to “self-certify” that they meet
the Section 3 eligibility requirements?

As previously mentioned, the regulation allows recipient agencies to use their own
discretion to develop specific procedures for meeting the requirements of Section 3.
Many recipient agencies choose to allow prospective Section 3 residents or
businesses to self-certify their eligibility. The Department recommends that any self-
certification should include a statement of penalty for falsifying information.

47.Are Section3 business concerns only certified to receive preference in the
community in which they are located?

No. While certification is locality specific, recipient agencies can count a Section3
business that is located outside of its immediate jurisdiction towards their efforts to
meet the minimum numerical goals. However, recipient agencies should not provide
preference to a Section 3 that is not located in their jurisdiction if a local Section 3
business has also submitted a qualified bid for a contract and can complete the work
to be done. Refer to the order of priority preference for Section 3 contract
opportunities at 24 CFR Part 13536

48. Does preference to a Section 3 business mean that the business should be selected
if it meets the technical requirements of the bid, regardless of bid price?

No. As provided in 24 CFR 85.36(b) (8), contract awards shall only be made to
responsible contractors ~5ossessing the ability to perform under the terms and
conditions of the proposed contract. In order to meet the requirements of Section 3
and Federal Procurement laws, recipient agencies must develop procedures that are
consistent with all applicable regulations

49.Can contracting with MBE/WBE businesses count towards Section 3 contracting
goals’

Section 3 is race and gender neutral. Only MBEsIWBEs that meet the eligibility
criteria set forth in the regulation can they be counted towards the minimum goals for
Section 3 contracting opportunities.

50. Does a business have to be incorporated to be considered a Section 3 eligible
business9

A Section 3 business concern can be any type of business, such as a sole
proprietorship, partnership or a corporation, properly licensed and meeting all legal
requirements to perform the contract under consideration.
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ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIESINUMERICALGOALS

51. How can residents and businesses locate recipient agencies that are required to
comply with Section 3 in their area?

To find local recipients agencies, Section 3 residents or businesses should contact
their local HUD office. To find your closest office, visit: www.hud.gov/localoffices

52. How can I find Section 3 businesses in my area?
Contact local recipient agencies to find Section 3 business concerns in your area.

53. What types of new employment opportunities are covered by Section 3?

For public and Indian housing (PIH) programs, all employment opportunities
generated by the expenditure of operating, capital, and modernization assistance,
including management and administrative jobs, technical, professional, construction
and maintenance jobs, at all levels.

For housing and community development programs, all employment opportunities
arising in connection with housing rehabilitation (including reduction and abatement
of lead-based paint hazards); housing construction; or other public construction,
including management and administrative jobs, technical, professional, building
trades and non-construction jobs, at all levels.

54.Are recipient agencies required to meet the Section 3 goals, or are they optional?

The Section 3 numerical goals are minimum targets that must be reached in order
for the Department to consider a recipient in compliance. Recipient agencies are
required to make best efforts to the greatest extent feasible, to achieve the annual
numerical goals for employment and contracting. If an agency fails to fully meet the
Section 3 numerical goals, they must adequately document the efforts taken to meet
the numerical goals (see Question #2 for a discussion of “to the greatest extent
feasible”).

55. What are the Section 3 minimum numerical goals?

The minimum numerical goal for employment is thirty (30) percent of the aggregate
number of new hires shall be Section 3 residents, annually-i.e., 3 out of 10 new
employees needed to complete a Section 3 covered projectlactivity shall be Section
3 residents.

The minimum goals for contracting are:
a Ten (10) percent of the total dollar amount of all Section 3 covered contracts for

building trades work for maintenance, repair, modernization or development of
public or Indian housing or building trades work arising in connection with
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housing rehabilitation, housing construction and other public construction, shall
be awarded to Section 3 businesses; and

Three (3) percent of the total dollar amount of all non-construction Section 3
covered dontracts shall be awarded to Section 3 businesses

56. What is considered a Section 3 covered “non-construction” project?

Section 3 covered non-construction projects include maintenance contracts,
including lawn care, re-painting, routine maintenance, HVAC servicing, and
professional service contracts associated with construction (ex.: architectural,
engineering, legal services, accounting, marketing, etc.).

57.What is considered ‘other” public construction?

Other public construction includes infrastructure work, such as extending water and
sewage lines, sidewalk repairs, site preparation, installing conduits for utility
services, etc

58.Are the numerical goals the same as set-asides and quotas?

No. A set-aside guarantees that a specific portion of funds will be provided to a
protected class. Section 3 goals are minimum numerical targets that a recipient of
HUD Section 3 covered financial assistance must try to reach to attain compliance
with Section 3

59. What is the meaning of the ‘safe harbor” determination?

When a recipient agency or contractor meets the numerical goals, the recipient or
contractor is considered to be in compliance with Section 3, absent evidence to the
contrary (i e , evidence o? findings obtained from a Section 3 compliance review)

60. What should recipient agencies or contractors do if they fail to meet the minimum
numerical goals set forth in the regulation?

Recipient agencies and their contractors must adequately document all efforts taken
to comply with the requirements of Section 3, and explain why despite their efforts
“to the greatest extent feasible”; the minimum numerical goals were not met.

The Department will take each agency’s explanation into consideration when making
compliance determinations.
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RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING

61. What are the recordkeeping requirements of Section 3 recipient agencies?

Documentation of actions taken to comply with the employment, training and
contracting. requirements of Section 3, the resUlts of actions taken and impediments
encduntered. Recipient agencies should maintain records of job vacancies,
solicitation for bids or proposals, selection materials, and contract documents
(including scope of work and contract amount), in accordance with Federal or State
procurement laws and regulations. The documentation should.demonstrate efforts
taken towards the achievement of the Section 3 numerical goals.

62.Who is required to submit Section 3 repotts?

Each direct recipient of Section 3 covered HUD financial assistance shall submit an
annual report for the purpose of determining the effectiveness of Section 3. Section
3 summary reports, form HUD 60002, are required even if therecipient agency did
not undertake any activities that triggered the requirements. Subrecipients,
developers, and contrabtors should not submit Section 3 annual reports directly to
the Department.

63.Where should Section 3 summary reports (Form HUD 60002) be submitted?

The Departmenthas developed an online reporting system to allow grantees to
submit Section 3 reports (form HUD 60002) directly to PHEC. Reports should be
submitted online at: www.hud.qov/section3 from the Section 3 website.

64.After an agency submits its Section 3 report online, should a hardcopy of the form
also be submitted to HUD by fax, email, or mail?

No. Since the Department has an online reporting system, it s not necessary for
agencies to submit hard copies (or paper copies) of reports to FHEO. The
Department is making an effort to go “paperless” and wants to reduce paper
submissions of Section 3 reports.

However, it is recommended that grantees retain a copy of their completed Section 3
reports on file andoptionally submit them as an attachment to their annual
performancereport if applicable (CAPERS report for CDBG~ HOMEand ESO
Programs).

65.Are contractors or developers required to submit Section 3.reports directly to HUD?

No. Contractors and/or developers should not submit Section 3 reports to HUD.
Only direct rebipients (agencies) are required to submit Section 3 reports to HUD.
Contractors should maintain adequate documentation to demonstrate compliance
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with Section 3 and forward information to theciireqt recipient (i.e~, the agency that
) awarded them a covered contract) as directed or upon request

66. Should recipient agencies establish a reporting system for their contractors and
subcontractors? ‘~

Yes, reports complied by contractors, and subcontractors will assist the recipient
agency in gathering the necessary data for submission to HUD

67. When are Section 3 annual reports (Form’HUD 60002) due?:

Depending on the source of funding, anhual reports should be submitted at one of
three times:

1) At the time the recipient submits an annual performance report;
2) By January 10 of each year if no program annual performance report is

required; or
3) Within ten (10) days of project completion, whichever is earlier.

• PHAs should submit form HUD60002 by January 10th•

• GranteesAwarded.funding for Section 202/811 should submit form HUD 60002
by January 10th.

• ‘Grantees Awarded funding for CDBG, HOME and/or ESG’ should submit form
HUD 60002 at the same time they submit the CAPER report.

• Grantees Awarded funding for lead abatement activities should submit form HUD
6.0002 with their annual reports no later than September 30th,

68.Where can I find instructions for completing form HUD 60002?

InstrUctions for completing form HUD 60002 can be found on the Section 3 website
at www hud gov/section3 Additional technical assistance for completing form HUD
60002 can be obtained by submitting an email request to: section3tñthud.qov..

69. How can,a recipient agency request a copy, make corrections, or delete its own
Section 3. annual report?

The recipient agency should submit an email request to section3~2hud.gov.
Requests should contain the agency’s name along with the year, grant number, and
dollar amount of the report in question. C.

70. How can I obtain copies of 60002 reports for another local recipient agency?
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Copies of 60002 reports for local recipient agencies for which you are not affiliated
with can be obtained by completing and submitting a Freedom of Information Act
(FOIA) request at: http://www.hudgov/officeslogc/foia/foiareciuests.cfm.

71 .Are agencies required to submit Form HUD 2516 to demonstrate compliance with
Section 3?

No. Agencies are not required to submit Form HUD 2516 to demonstrate
compliance with Section 3. In addition, while Form HUD 2516 does capture some
Section 3 data, it is not sufficient to demonstrate overall compliancetO the
Department. The only form that should be submitted for Section 3 reporting
requirements is form HUD 60002.

SECTION 3 COMPLAINTS

72.Who can file a complaint that alleges non-compliance with the requirements of
• Section 3?

Any Section 3 resident or Section 3 business (or authorized represçntative) seeking
employment, training, or contracting opportunities generated by Section 3 covered
assistance may file a complaint using form HUD 958.

73. Where should Section 3 complaints be submitted?

Effective November 2007, Section 3 complaints must be filed at the appropriate
FHEO Regional Office where the violation occurred, Please visit
www.hud.gov/offices/fheo to obtain the address and telephone number for FHEO
regional offices.

74. Where can I find form HUD 958?

Copies ef the Section 3complaint form (HUD 958), filing instructions and mailing
addresses may be obtained at: www.hud.gov/section3.

75. Is there a time limit for filing a Section 3 complaint?

Yes. Section 3 complaintsrriust be filed no later than 180 days from the date of the
action bromission upon which the complaint is based.

76. What happens during an investigation?

Once a timely complaint has been filed with the appropriate Regional Office, the
Department will determine if the compliant has jurisdiction or is covered by Section 3
regulations. An investigator will be assigned the case and will notify the respondent
about the complaint. The respondent has the option of resolving the complaint or
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contesting it. If the respondent contests or denies the allegations of noncompliance
contained in the complaint, the investigator will proceed to gather facts or evidence
from both parties. Thereafter,the investigatorwili prepare a letter of findings and:
either make a determination of noricomplianbe or dismiss the complaint.

77.What happens if HUD determines a recipient is in noncompliance?

Pursuant to 24 CFR 135.76, the Assistant Secretary will attempt, through ihformal
methods, to obtain a voluntary and just resolution of the complaint. Where attempts
to resolve the complaint informally fail, the Assistant Secretary will impose a
resolution on the recipient and complainant. Any reso!ution imposed by the Assistant
Secretary will be in accordance with requirements and procedures concerning the
imposition of sanctions or resolutions as set forth in the regulations governing the
HUD program under which the Section 3 covered assistance is provided.

78. Can complainants appeal the initial decision made in a Section 3 complaint?

A complainant can submit a written appeal to the Ass!stant Secretary for Fair
Housing and Equal Opportunity in Washington, DC within 15 days after the Regional
Office makes its determination. Requests should be sent to:

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Office of Fair Housing and Equal Opportunity
451 Seventh Street, SW
Room 5100
Washington, DC 20410

79.Where else can I file complaints alleging denied employment and contracting
opportunities?

If you are denied employment and/or contracting opportunities, you may have
standing to bring a complaint at HUD under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and/or
Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974.

You may also be eligible to bring complaints under other federal laws. The U.S.
Equal Employment Oprortijnity Commission (EEOC) is responsible for enforcing
federal laws that make itillégalto discriminate against ajob applicant or an
employee because of the person’s race, color, religion, sex (including pregnancy),
national origin, age (40 or older), disability or genetic information (medical history or
predisposition to disease). For more information about your rights, please contact
EEOC at: www.EEOC.qov.
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• The Department of Labor Office of Federal Contract Compliance. Programs
(OFCCP) enforces, for the benefit of job seekers and Wage earners, the contractual
promise of affirmative action and equal employment opportunity required of those
who do business With the FEderal government. More information about the services
they provide can be obtained at: http://www.dol.cioviofccn/
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